BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL CABINET

Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 June 2019 at 10.00 am

Present:-

Cllr V Slade – Chairman Cllr M Howell – Vice-Chairman

Present: Cllr D Brown, Cllr L Dedman, Cllr A Hadley, Cllr S Moore,

Cllr M Phipps, Cllr Dr F Rice and Cllr K Wilson

Also in Cllr S Bartlett, Cllr P Broadhead, Cllr S Bull, Cllr C Bungey, attendance: Cllr D Flagg, Cllr M Greene, Cllr N Greene, Cllr M Haines,

Cllr P Hilliard, Cllr R Lawton and Cllr K Rampton

1. Apologies

There were no apologies for absence on this occasion.

2. Declarations of Interests

There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion.

3. Public Issues

The Leader advised that public questions had been submitted by Mr John Sprackling and Mr Conor O'Luby and that a statement had been submitted by Mrs Susan Chapman.

Public Question from John Sprackling

103 of the report presented to the Shadow Executive meeting on 12 February 2019 in relation to <u>Agenda item 9 - 2019/20 Budget and Consolidated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) Update</u> said "The budget (for the Scheme of Member Allowances) makes provision for a total cost of £1.034m which is a £500k saving on the consolidated budgets for the four predecessor councils."

According to my calculations, the total cost to date is £1.185m, with the Chairmen of six Committees still to be appointed at, potentially, an additional cost of £46,000.

What saving is to be made to cover this over-spend please?

Response by Councillor Vikki Slade (Leader of the Council)

When setting the budget for the 2019/20 financial year consideration was given to a number of factors which would impact on the amount that needed to be budgeted for Member Allowances in the first year of the BCP Council. These included:

 For the period to the 6 May 2019 of the new Council all members of the predecessor authorities were paid a basic allowance and no Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) were paid during this period.

- Certain SRAs will not become payable until the first meeting of the relevant Committee/Board. For example the SRA payable to the Chairman of Audit and Governance Committee will only be payable from the 25 July 2019 onwards.
- Councillors are restricted to claiming just one SRA.

Once estimates of these issues are taken into account then the current projection is that the Members Allowance element of this 2019/20 budget will not be overspent.

Public Question from Mr Conor O'Luby

The former Bournemouth Borough Council's grant of planning permission for the so-called 'A338-Wessex Fields Link' represents one of the most egregious displays of contempt for local public opinion in recent times. Can the Cabinet confirm that they will undertake a serious review of both this and other such damaging schemes e.g. the Winter Gardens scheme?

Response by Councillor Mark Howell (Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Culture and Deputy Leader)

We commit to review each of the major regeneration and development schemes at an appropriate point, and in any case before the next significant decision is made on each scheme. The reviews will be brought before the Cabinet to ensure that there is maximum transparency around any decisions. For many of the schemes there are significant funding deadlines attached which will need to be seriously considered as part of the decision making process.

Statement from Mrs Chapman

Distinguished economist Professor Joseph Stiglitz, recipient of prestigious prizes including the Nobel Memorial Prize in Economic Sciences, argues the climate crisis is our third world war and needs a bold response. Civilisation is at stake if we do not implement a Green New Deal. The 40s mobilisation crisis parallels the current global climate crisis.

Porto Santo's smart, fossil-free energy system with reversible batteries feeding back to the grid from electric vehicles shows how local authorities can profit from clean energy production. Renault is integrating an electrical ecosystem; an example it would be good for BCP to follow.

The Chairman thanked Mrs Chapman for her statement.

4. Financial Outturns 2018/19

The Portfolio Holder for Finance submitted a report requesting that Councillors consider the Financial Outturns for 2018/19. A copy of the report appears as Appendix 'A' to these minutes in the Minute Book.

Members thanked officers for their hard work in closing down the end of year accounts and the ongoing work being carried out by the Finance Teams.

In relation to this item the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Board addressed Cabinet advising of the recommendation in respect of this item from their recent meeting. The minute from the Overview and Scrutiny Board was summarised as follows:

"Agenda Item 4 – Financial Outturns 2018/19

The Overview and Scrutiny Board considered the recommendations within the report and asked questions of the Cabinet Portfolio Holder and Chief Financial Officer. A Member of the Board made a request for an analysis of Council priorities in order to ensure that the allocation of £493,000 was the most pressing priority for the Council. It was confirmed by the Cabinet Portfolio Holder that the full list of Council priorities was still under consideration but that the Unity Alliance was in agreement that this was a clear priority and could be delivered imminently.

In light of this the Overview and Scrutiny Board recommended that: The Financial Outturns Cabinet report, recommendation 1 be amended to read:

That Cabinet approve the allocation of £493,000 in Capital Funding be implemented as set out in section 10 when further analysis is available which demonstrates this is indeed the most pressing priority of the Council.

This motion was agreed by 8 votes to 7.

Cllr Farquhar requested that his vote against the motion be recorded.

The Leader of the Council thanked Councillor Broadhead and the Overview and Scrutiny Board for their comments and recommendation.

In respect of this the Portfolio Holder for Finance advised that the capital had been generated by the Borough of Poole and it was therefore felt that it would be appropriate to use as a capital investment within Poole, no other suggestions or proposals had been put forward for the use of this money.

In respect of this a number of Cabinet Members highlighted the longstanding issues with regards to toilet provision in Poole, and further to this emphasised that any money needed to be used carefully.

A number of Members addressed the Cabinet raising concerns with regards to potential ongoing costs and the lack of documented evidence supporting the allocation of the capital for the toilets.

In relation to this Cabinet highlighted that the evidence had been well documented within the media, and that the facilities would be able to be used by all members of society visiting Poole.

RESOLVED that:-

- (a) the allocation of £493,000 in capital funding towards an early priority of the BCP Council, as set out in section 10 of the report, be approved;
- (b) an update from the Corporate Director for Children's Services on the progress in delivering a sustainable solution to the High Needs element of the Dedicated Schools Grant be requested. This update to be included as a separate appendix to the 2019/20 First Quarter Budget Monitoring Report.

- (c) the opening reserve position of BCP Council, as set out in Appendix D, be noted; and
- (d) the year-end outturn positions achieved including revenue, capital, reserves and Housing Revenue Accounts be noted.

Voting: Unanimous

5. <u>Medium Term Financial Plan Update Report</u>

The Portfolio Holder for Finance submitted a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

In presenting the report the Portfolio Holder for Finance advised that he would be working with finance officers to ensure that the Council is being prudent with their decisions. In relation to this Cabinet were advised that the spending review by the Government was now not likely to start before the summer recess, and that the results of which were unlikely to be announced before Christmas, in which case officers will have 6-8 weeks in order to present a balanced budget.

A number of Members addressed Cabinet raising their concerns with regards to shortening the timescale for Council Tax harmonisation, highlighting the increases which would need to be made particularly in respect of Poole residents to bring Council tax inline within two years.

In relation to this Cabinet stressed the importance of Council Tax harmonisation emphasising that the original seven year plan was too long.

RESOLVED that:-

- (a) the budget planning process, as referenced in paragraph 15 to the report, be approved;
- (b) the timeline for key financial reports during 2019/20, as set out in Appendix A of the report, be approved;
- (c) the financial strategy, as referenced in paragraphs 28 to 31 and as set out in Appendix C of the report, be approved;
- (d) the updated MTFP position and the key financial planning assumptions, as set out in Appendix B of the report, be noted; and
- (e) the CIPFA Financial Management Code of Practice be noted.

Voting: Unanimous

6. <u>Appointment to Outside Bodies</u>

The Leader of the Council submitted a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

Members were requested to approve the appointments of Councillors to external bodies which are appointments to be made by the Leader/Cabinet as the Executive.

RESOLVED that the appointment of individual Councillors to the external bodies be approved as set out below:-

Name	Number of Reps	Name of Council Representative(s)
Wessex Regional	1+1 Substitute	Cllr Dr Felicity Rice
Flood and Coastal		Cllr Andy Hadley (Sub)
Committees		
BCP Community	1	Cllr Lewis Allison
Safety Partnership		
Stour Valley and	4	Cllr David Brown
Poole Partnership	Politically balanced:	Cllr Kieron Wilson
Joint Committee	2 Con: 1 LD: 1 other	2 Conservatives TBA
Dorset Joint Public	2	Cllr Lesley Dedman
Health Board		Cllr Sandra Moore
		Cllr Vikki Slade (Reserve
		Executive Member)
		Cllr L-J Evans (Non-
		Executive, Non-Voting
		Member)
Poole Housing	2	Cllr Kieron Wilson
Partnership Board		Cllr Chris Matthews
Tricuro Executive	5	Cllr David Brown
Shareholder Group		Cllr Mike Cox
·		Cllr Lesley Dedman
		Cllr L-J Evans
		Cllr Lisa Lewis
Seascape South	2	Cllr Nigel Brooks
Limited		Cllr Kieron Wilson
Bournemouth Building	2	Cllr Simon McCormack
Maintenance Limited		Cllr Kieron Wilson
Seascape Homes and	2	Cllr George Farquhar
Properties Limited		Cllr Kieron Wilson
Bournemouth	1	Cllr Michael Brooke
Development		
Company		
Dorset LEP	2	Cllr Vikki Slade (Leader of
		the Council)
		Cllr Mark Howell
Lower Central	4	Cllr Simon Bull
Gardens Trust Board	Politically balanced:	Cllr Mark Howell
	2 Con: 1 LD: 1 other	2 Conservatives TBA

Voting: Unanimous

7. <u>Cabinet Forward Plan</u>

The Leader provided Members with an update with respect to the Forward Plan, detailing the key decisions which the Cabinet expects to take during the period to 31 May 2020.

Cabinet were advised that the Forward Plan was currently being developed more fully to reflect the emerging corporate plan and priorities.

Further to this the Leader informed Cabinet of the proposal to move the date of the next Cabinet meeting to Friday 12 July 10.00 am from the original date of Wednesday 10 July.

RESOLVED that the next meeting of the Cabinet be held on Friday 12 July at 10.00 am.

Voting: Unanimous

The meeting ended at 11.15 am

<u>CHAIRMAN</u>